
Fort Ord Reuse Authority 
920 2nd Avenue, Suite A, Marina, CA 93933 

Phone: (831) 883-3672 • Fax: (831) 883-3675 • www.fora.org 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS BOARD MEETING 
Friday, March 9, 2012 at 3:30 p.m. 

910 2nd Ave, Marina (Carpenter's Union Hall) 

Minutes 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
Chair Potter called the Board Meeting to order at 3:30 p.m. 

Voting Members Present: 

Alec Arago (1 i h Congressional District) @ 3:36 p.~~,). Graham Bice (University of California) 
Cristal Clark (15th State Senate District), .. :;::~, ":,. ';:;:~j~:!. . HOVllaid Gustafson (Marina Coast Water District) 
Nicole Charles (27th State Assembly J~i$trict) ':;:;i~:;: ·<::~{ff::;::·" .. Austi~·Weliner (CSUMB) 
Vicki Nakamura (MPC);$:~~::: .~~l1;; '::;::::;;~~;i:;fiunter Harvath (Monterey-Salinas Transit 
Debbie Hale (Transportation AgenCY::~f.:i~l~~::::::::::::.;... District) @ 3:35 p.m. 

Monterey County)v::::;~:~::" .'::;:~~:::;::>:;;:Ji:~:z;;::':::::~;:~~i::::::,~~::~:> Pamela von Ness (United States Army) 
Gail Youngblood (Fort Or9;~RAC:~:f!ice);~11I' 

Absent::;~~f.,· J!i\.~;~ '~:~ij;~~;:~)g 
Dr. Shepard (Mont~r~y p'~ij'nsula;::M'ified SchocWOistrict) 

~;' ;::~;>~ ~ Wi~:;: i~1:t~~~ ~::i~ ~ & "~ ::~~ ~{~it~}::';~ 
2. PLEDGE OF;;~'(:i[EGIA~~E ':;}:;';' 

Mayor Edelei~:(ed the PI~fige of ~1t~gj.ance. 
o":::~~~~~>b ,/.:'~~~~~~~: '\":;:;~:> 

3. ACKNOWLED~~eNfs/ANNOUNCEMENTS, AND CORRESPONDENCE 
.,,<,;, '+','/~<~<oY< 

Exe.®;ti¥~Officer Mitbael Houlemard encouraged members of the public to complete a Public Comment Form 
~'2':;~>' "~\j-;*;;"9>,, .,;~,~~~,», 

in or,(f~f:to:;~~j~J VIlith tij~:~ccuracy of the minutes, noting that completion VIlas voluntary. He stated that FORA 
had dj~lt:ibut~·~;~~i;p~.e,~.~ r~~:ase on March 6,2012 in response to recent allegations from Keep Fort Ord Wild, 
copies ~~f:~;~~~ilabr@,:f.8·the public. He noted that, in response to questions from Board Members, UCSC had 
agreed tb~~irli Agenda Item 5b from the Consent Agenda and to reschedule it for consideration at a future 
Board meetJl:\g. 

"),,\,,, 

a. univers~i~ of California (UC) Monterey Bay Education, Science, and Technology (MBEST) 
Center Stakeholder's Visioning Process - Final Results Update 
UCSC Vice Chancellor for Research Bruce Margon provided a final update on the UC MBEST Visioning 
Process, summarizing proposed next steps, VIlhich included the formation of an UC MBEST advisory group. 

Mayor McCloud asked whether UC MBEST planned to include the Monterey Institute of International 
Studies, and Dr. Margon stated that their goal VIlas to be fully inclusive. 



LeVonne Stone, Fort Ord Environmental Justice Network, expressed dissatisfaction that the Fort Ord 
Environmental Justice Network had not been included in the UC MBEST visioning process. 

Mr. Houlemard noted that UCSC and FORA had shared visioning process costs. 

b. Letter from California Military Base Reuse Coalition to State Legislators 
Mr. Houlemard informed the Board that the Executive Committee had authorized staff to move 
forward with a letter to the Joint Committees of the California State Asse~~~~j;~,{egarding the 
potential for the creation of "Military Base Reuse and Recovery Zones or~fjtffe1<~,~~anism to 
help local jurisdictions to recover from the impacts of base closure.;;~~:~:;;;;;; ~{:~~~~;~; 

" ~<:~~~;~~::~S~~, ~~~~~§~;::~ 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT /{:::: ~:;:::~:;::;~~ ~,,:;::::~ 

Arthur McLoughlin, Chair of the Monterey Bay Youth Camp, stated;~t~:§:i after ~2~:]~~~ars th~~;j~were 
preparing for the final transfer of the Youth Camp land. He anno~~~~:d that t~.ir B~t~; .. oJ:::Wrectors 
currently had several vacancies and they were seeking qualifieg intt:l~jdual~.<t~:~flll those:::ms,Hions. He 
asked that all interested parties provide their contact informatiori;~Q FG~~.~iff;·member, Stah Cook. 

<;:~~i::;. ":::~j~i': 
Ron Chesshire, Monterey Santa Cruz Building Construction and::mrades'<~~!!:m' lscussed the UC 
MBEST Final Visioning Report. He expressed conC;~~!):Jegardiif~z;the liii:: .'~ growth within the 
Monterey Bay Area community and the misinformation re'C:e~~ly: .. circul~led regarlmg population growth 
projections. He emphasized the need for quality job$:.foLthe mldttle:claS$;. 

.:;iail!~~~~:::/:·:··;;;:;:;:~:jl~:;:;;;:(.. . ··:·;·;;::t:::~:]~~jb 
Ms. Stone stated that she was Interested in Ujlprogress dijl;~~e proposea Veterans Cemetery project 
and the Veterans Clinic. She inquired as to th~~l9cation of th~;:~~iginal Community Plan. 

< , ~ 0, '-~~~i~;:;:~ '~~:;li: 
Mark Mesiti-Miller, Communities o(gsnri~. fo'f::~;R:elational p.Qwer in Action (COPA), discussed the 
importance of instituting a pOliCY9f:;j<fcal pr~~renc~:~!!~::r.~g~):ds to awarding contracts and urged the 
Board to select EMC Planning tQ::::(5omplete:U'e BaseR'euss'Plan (BRP) Reassessment. Chair Potter 
noted that the selection of a con§~n~nt t9;:;~Q~l\1:I~t~Jhe BRP Reassessment was agendized item and 
suggested that Mr. Mesiti::MJll~t::;;;f:.~se~~:;~fs com~mefft$::until the Board reached that item. 

5. CONSENT AGEN DA;:~:~l~;:::~i;:::/ . ·'·::~'?a;;;:;:;;il(:~~;;~.i~; 
a. February 22, 2012;'Ii:Q~ B<>;'t~ minutes;;l;:;~ 

MOTIO~t1~11~~~~l1~~:;;~;J~t~~~::~oved, seconded by ~ayor McCloud, and the motion passed to 
appr~~~tfle mmijt~s ofJ;@;~ruary 22, 2012 as written. 

6. 

~<~~;~::>,~ ~;::;::~: . '<:~:\;:~>, 

VOTE: Jilti~J~~~.~;~yor Bachgfner (not present for the February 22, 2012 meeting) Absent: 
;,;i;:§IJPerviso";Q~t:cagno 
"~~~l~~~~:;:~~;~;~~~::::>~ ~ ~<:;~~:1k;:.~~~. 

b. l:J~l}\lfBS~~~:~~nter{~~~~keholders Visioning Group Commitment Letter 
P~~;Mr J~gt.tl~m~rd's earlier announcement, the item will appear at a future meeting. 

'<::<>~ ~~~~~~:/' "<~~~:::;~1:::' 

SS 

a. Base ~'JJse Plan reassessment consultant selection - 2nd Vote 
FORA Associate Planner Darren McBain explained that at the February 22, 2012 Board meeting, a 
majority of the Board had voted in favor of awarding the consulting contract for completion of the BRP 
Reassessment to EMC Planning Group. As the vote was not unanimous, the item needed to return for 
a second vote. Due to the fact that the motion to award the contract to AECOM had not received 
majority approval at the February 22,2012 meeting, it did not return for a second vote. Mr. McBain 
summarized the information provided in staff report. He announced that the RBF/AECOM team had 
withdrawn their proposal for the project and no longer wished to be considered. 

March 9, 2012 Page 2 



Mr. Mesiti-Miller urged FORA to adopt a local preference policy. 

Ralph Rubio, Carpenters Local 605, spoke in support of local preference. He stated that EMC 
Planning Group had done great job for FORA in the past and urged that the Board award the contract 
to them. 

Mr. Chesshire, citizen, stated that both firms were qualified, but that EMC PlanQl,Qm~f:2up was familiar 
with the history of the base closure and had compiled an experienced local tgi":>:'"""<::~~:~~::;;;,,, 

Ms. Stone stated that FORA needed to institute a strong local preferen~e~~l'y.;:~\j\~;:; 
.<.;:~l;1:l~;;~ ·';::i~::'ijl~;;;.; ;r:~: 

Mayor Pro-Tern O'Connell expressed dissatisfaction with the con~~t!~nt selectio' "", cess' .. J¥lingthat 
AECOM had scored higher in the panel interviews and the Adrll~~l~trative q~~mitf;~PQ~~Jtance. He 
indicated his plan to vote in oppositio~ to the EMC Planning ;~:~cit:i~j~~;le5~!:~f:f;based orr~1~{concern 
about the process not EMC as an entlty.~:::>, ";~;;~~:;;;;:;::;;:';;;;;< 

Mayor Donohue expressed support for EMC Planning Group.;::;;~1;~\:;:; ;;;;:~{j;);;~:;;;, ,;,;;,;1~~~~~;:i:;> 
;:;:;;:~:;:\;;;;;;;, ;;;:i1:1:; "';;;;2~m:[~?;;;' 

MOTION: Mayor Edelen moved, seconded by Mayci"r;'a~Q:9.huefi~nd the motion passed to 
authorize the Executive Officer to negoti~;'~;~~"j;t,j~!IJ<!~r inlo~~~;f:;g~\ract with EMC Planning Group 
to perform the BRP Reassessment wor~fffot to ex~~p $250~GGQ~i:!:" 

~~~~~~ ~"~~~i~~~:!: ",? 

VOTE: No: Mayor Pro-Tem O'Connell di~'ented, pass~j;t;;by Second Vote majority 
r «;~::~:; >/' " \~~~~~~~:; '~~ };t~~11 

b. California Central Coast Veter~tii$e~~~teiY:i~;.$uppol1;;~B 1842 
Mr. Houlemard stated that the,;~P~'2 Legi~('tive"'~~n~j:l:;~,~~l;uded support for efforts to establish a 
California Central Coast Vet~ra:ns Cem~f~lY on Forft5fd'. Currently, AB 629 allowed FORA to 
contribute to the ~esign.~J)~ appr~~tJ~h:;Pf~~Ji;t2phe proposed ce.metery. AB 1842 proposed to 
create a mechanrsm t:>,~;~nJJt:tt~ny;;~~¥ances froYrHne local communrty to the state endowment fund for 
veterans Cemetery;;4~ign W~~~. reirll~l;I[~able by federal funds received by the state. He emphasized 
that AB 1842 addtg~~ed a mi~~fng linl(f~:;\be process that would make it easier for local organizations 
and individuals to c'B;ij:t~~but~;:t~~;the estabfii~ment of a Veterans Cemetery. He emphasized that AB 
1842 was ~<~r:'~~I,~p f&~;~~;.~eard in the State Assembly on March 20, 2012. In order to be effective, 
letters ot~'ijt>l>ort n~~ded::~::pe received by legislators prior to that date. 

~:J~i.::· Jl~!~i ·:;:;;:i~.;i:::, 
Ms. Storlak~~quir~~::;as to the Umeline for the project, how many acres had been proposed for inclusion 
i.~ the cemet'~:i,;oject, and how many jobs the project was anticipated to create for the community. 

<:i~~f;;;~;~~;;~;h~ > , ,~p:"~~f~~~~> 
'l!~iW;;~~~ini, Ve$f~ns Cemetery Advisory Committee, urged the Board to sign the letter of support 
fdt:~B rS4!;:;';":;::;*:;' 

·;::~~!~i~: ... :~:~~:~j~~::':::::~~iD~3.:::::·::> 
FOR~:~enior Planner Jonathan Garcia stated that the timeline for the project would be determined by 
when'Stb;e funding was deposited into the state's endowment fund. Once that was done, the design 
phase '~9:Uld last approximately a year and a half. Construction would take approximately the same 
amount'tjf time. The current cemetery proposal included approximately 78 acres. More jobs were 
anticipated during the construction phase, with 3-4 long-term positions needed to maintain the 
cemetery. 

MOTION: Supervisor Parker moved, seconded by Councilmember Oglesby, and the motion 
passed to approve a Letter of Support for AB 1842. 

March 9, 2012 Page 3 



c. Resolution in Support of a National landscape Conservation System designation for former 
Fort Ord habitat lands 

Mr. Houlemard stated that the Board had previously indicated support for the designation, but that 
White House representatives had asked for a show of formal support. 

Mayor Edelen expressed support for the designation, noting that it would not affect adjacent property 
owners and their land designations. ,d",:>:g:/, ;'" 

"<{~~~~::~~~>j>/ ~ ~¥:~;;~~~~?1~~~, 
Alec Arago, 17th Congressional District, added that a national Monument qi~!g'nation cotJf~~;f>nly apply 
to federal land. ,;;:;l;':::;;, ',:;;'A, 

_ l' < , \. "' <;~:~~;:;, 
,,~:i:~~~~~~' <~~~;:~f;r;~i~;~~ ~~~:~~~ 

Chair Potter stated that he had been in Washington, D.C. earlier io:,fHf'week ana:~ad discu,~d the 
designation with Bob Abbey's Chief of Staff. He inquired as to ttl"~/<;:;ssibilit}'::1,~t exp;~(' . (~:iffer zones 
that would affect proposed development and had been assured ,~~"was n~llhe case. ;" 

{!~~~:~F '~~~~;~~~:~;~;~:>.o <;;~~~~tY ~ 

Councilmember Oglesby expressed support for the deSignati6~~;:;;;;:q~:j~l;;:;', fl1ii~~;} 
, ~~:~~~~~~> ~;~"";~"''' /~:~;R:' 

Mr. Houlemard stated that Congressman Farr was eQ~f:i:Q,ent thaf~;the supp6~~f;focal jurisdictions 
would be influential at the national level. ";;;;::~~;i<.;;;,,;;::;h:; ;,; 

",;;:~~:f:~::::;i;i:~~:;:i;;;, "';;::;;:;~;;~t:;:;,<;~l~;" 
Mr. Chesshire provided an email of suppot1;;j@~rhad s'~f1!;~Q the Pe~~~oVironment Group, urging their 
support for the designation. ~~~' ";;~~!:::; ,; 

:~~;;t '~~~it;~~, 
Ms. Stone expressed concern that thfLdesigaation would re'S:trict the use of the land for the local 

com m unity . ";i;!i~~\;;:;~:::;~5::;i:!;1\;~~~i;i ';;::~~1ll~~:1;~~;~j~:';;:;;t~%::;f~~;{W 
MOTION: Supervisor Parkeilhoved, $igondedb}?C;~~ncilmember Oglesby, and the motion 
passed unanimously to ado'~t;~R~s"~titiE)i;~:i~aiQ support of a National landscape 

D /"',',o~ ~ " ~~/~""_"""'" ~-9'j<.*/ '>J/?,! o"'\<'\"'"..:~ 

Conservation System;1:ges;i;9t!aff~ll1~r the BiJfeau of land Management's (BlM's) former Fort 
Ord habitat lands.,<§:;:!::;:'" '\;:;;~; '>:;::;:;,; 

7. NEW BUSINESS\!'%""~~~}"'>"\t~~~~ ''*~~? 
N one .~;;:~~~~ :""';';;;;;;:~;~,::;;j;;C;;;, 

" ',', '~,>:<:;o '<;:~:~,';& 

8. EXECUTIV~;'~~;~IC:;~~~;REPO~ft;; 
'<'~~~;:,\,~:;5j:~~:>' 

a. /}O~tstanding;"!je:ceivables 
';;~O~~C,Qntroll~:t~t~$;ma Bednarik stated that all payments were being made according to the agreed 

"Vr;';;"~;;:;'::4 I ',;,;;;, 
Lip~n SCrt~~,~,~ .':::~i~::;, 

'~~::; ,,;:;i~~~~:::;;:;:~::i:1~ii:::;;;;r ,',' 
b. Adri\l~j){rative Committee Report 

Mr.'::" lemard noted that the Administrative Committee minutes had been provided for Board 
review~:;;,::; 

'0" ~", 

'" 
c. Finance Committee Report 

Mr. Houlemard noted that the Finance Committee minutes had been provided for Board review. 

d. Habitat Conservation Plan 
Mr. Houlemard stated that he planned to speak with representatives from the U.S. Department of 
Fish and Wildlife Service while in Washington, D.C. for the Annual FORA Federal Legislative Mission 

March 9,2012 Page 4 



in April. The Habitat Conservation Plan was progressing according to the schedule provided to the 
Board at the February 10, 2012 Board Workshop. 

d. Executive Officer's Travel Report 
Mr. Houlemard explained that he had made several trips to Sacramento to discuss impacts to the 
community from the loss of redevelopment funds and to provide testimony before Assembly 
Committees. He stated that a panel would be meeting with the Speaker of the California State 
Assembly, Assemblymember Monning and a group of Assemblymembers regaX;Q:, e creation of 
some form of recovery program. The program might come in the form of milt~!ft) ,.:;~e and 
recovery zones, which would have a suite of mechanisms to assist the co~ffnities of tf1:~~~tate. He 
discussed his trips to Sacramento to brief members of the Assembly Locar~~ernment C(j~tnittee 
regarding AB 1614 and AB 1842 and his February trip to Miami for tg~~~ssodmmJ:1 of Defen~~: 
Communities (ADC) Winter Forum·,,~\i~:::;:: '~;:;~;':~;::;;:it;;: 

f c:}~~;;;;?:/ ,<~~;:~~ '<~;:~~~f,fs>~ ~<;;i;:~:~~Y 

Mayor Bachofner stated that the ADC Winter Forum trip was:~~tf~mely u.~l~y'and th~t~l~ili~:~d 
provided a valuable opportunity to meet with colleagues acroiithe::ftlt~~g:;facing sig)iJatmilitary base 
closures. Chair Potter agreed and urged members of the Boar(f'~o att~ij::Jhe Aug~1l::2012 Annual 

, /~, ' ","e" c <'">''<" 
ADC Conference Monterey.::;;:';,:::;::;::;::. :i::;::>' 

<~~~~:l;;:;~;(,O "~1~i~~::> <~~~, i~/ 
Ms. Stone expressed concern that the public was no(p~~~9.~q su8~~qy to attend the ADC Winter 
Forum. Mr. Houlemard explained that the A~Q~;~:~~~~~!ureof:;tb~;::erl~~te sector, the public sector, 
and military. He noted that FORA benefits J,l~m and cot~~~putes o'ac~}to ADC. 

~~~i~ '{:::;~:~" " 
'~~" ' ',> 

9. ITEMS FROM MEMBERS '~~j~< ";:;:::: 
Upon the request of Councilmember O~I~~~~.' Mr:~t!eulemard agf:~~d to provide the Board with a copy of the 
UC MBEST Final Visioning Report. fv\f::::Jiou1~lOC!ard::p!8vided an;:~~planation of the closed session items 
for the public. ::::;:' :;:[~ ';:;;:;:;i::;~::::;;:;~::::~;,;:~~:i;;: 

Ms. Stone asked why Preston P;:f~;lwasP~i~~:;i~~M:~g~d in closed session. Chair Potter replied that the 
Brown Act permitted reaIJ:l~q~~flt.'Y::neg,"~#tions toJBe:~eonsidered in closed session. 

10. CLOSED SESSION -4ij~t~oard:~~lour'~~~~~~to closed session at 4:35 p.m . 
. ";~:j~~::: :~i:::[f;~t;;;: ~'::;i;:;' 

a. Conferenc~<;~~~::~gaj:;~Q:~~s'el- Existing Litigation (Gov Code 54956.9) - 2 Cases 
i. Keep ~df~:Or(f:W"d v.:::f'9rt Ord Reuse Authority, Case Number: M116438 

>"/,'//;" 'o<">J '~>" '" " 
ii. Ke~~~,(jrt Ord V'I1:ll~ v. Foq;ilQrd Reuse Authority, Case Number: M114961 

b. Real pr8~'iY N~gI~iations (G:~\;I·Code 54956.8) 
Property: Pt@l~~~':Park - APN 031-201-027 and APN 031-201-028 
~~~~~i~~al Neg:Ql~,~:~r: Michael Houlemard (with FORA Board Negotiators) 
z~~~;\ . ~<,;;~~~$;~~:»~'b '<;::~~~~~ < 

TtJ~: Bo~r~t,pj~urn~~;t into open session at 5:08 p.m. 

11. ANN~~&~~~;:~~i;;8~~CTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION: 
Authorit{ij~unsel Jerry Bowden announced that the Board provided instructions to the Negotiating Committee 
and staff.:;:l~;~ 

~'<:~~:; 

12. ADJOU MENT: Ch . 

Minutes prepare 

Approved by: 

March 9, 2012 Page 5 


